BIG RAPIDS CHARTER TOWNSHIP BOARD

REGULAR MEETING TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2019
BIG RAPIDS TOWNSHIP OFFICES, 14212 NORTHLAND DR.
BIG RAPIDS, MI 49307

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER: 7:00 P-m. ROLL CALL: —Stanek,__ Fountain,__ Currie,
— Bean,__ Everett, Geib,__ Merendino Pledge of Allegiance.

PUBLIC COMMENT
ADDITIONS TO AGENDA:

CORESPONDENCE: Morley Community Center: ITEM A

APPROVAL OF: January 8 meeting minutes: ITEM B
January 15, meeting minutes: ITEM ¢
FINANCIAL
1. December Treasurer Report: ITEM D
2. Financial Report: ITEME

APPROVAL OF BILLS:
1. Accounts Payable: ITEM F
2. Payroll: ITEM G

MONTHLY REPORTS:

. BuildingIPlanning Department: ITEM H
Cemetery and Grounds: ITEM |
Fire Department; ITEM J
Sewer Department: ITEM K
Water Department: ITEM L
Fire Committee; ITEM m
Industrial Park Committee: ITEM N
Planning Commission: ITEM O
- Supervisor: ITEM P
0. Other

ORNOMmALN

-

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:
1.

Zoning Ordinance Amendment Final Printed copy approval: ITEM Q
2. Fire Department Chassis:
3. Employee Handbook changes: ITEM R
4. Other:

NEW BUSINESS:
- Recommendation to add Randy Buys to Fire Roster: ITEM s

-—h

2. 2018 Annual Report from Planning Commission: ITEM T
3. Website Options: ITEMU
4. Generator service contract:
5. Fire Department SOP's: ITEMV
6. Meeting with County, City and Ferris:
7. Other:
PUBLIC COMMENT:
ADJOURNMENT:

Big Rapids Charter Township will provide necessary and reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the hearing impaired and
audiotapes of printed Material, if individuals with disabilities, upon five business days notice to the township. Individuals requiring auxiliary aids

or services should contact Rene Fountain, Big Rapids Charter Township Clerk, 14212 Northfand Drive, Big Rapids, Mi 49307 call 231 796 3603 or
fax request to 231 796 2533.



Item «p»

Morley Community Center, Inc.

Big Rapids Charter Township Board

As you might have heard, we have formed a non-profit corporation to reopen the old Morley
Elementary School building for community use. The Morley Stanwood School Board and Superintendent
have signed a 10 year free lease with our non-profit organization which can be renewed indefinitely.
Our responsibility is to maintain the building, provide insurance coverage and pay the utilities.

At this time the heating system is being reconnected and hopefully will be operational in lanuary, The
plumbing will be reconnected over the next two months, We have obtained insurance coverage and our
Board has worked hard to clean up from the vandalism the building was exposed to and to find a home
for all the books left in the building.

Our intent is to reopen the building as before in clean condition with some new paint, but still be the
same building former students will recognize,

We thank the school district for repairing the 39 panes of broken glass from the vandalism. We also
thank them for the donation of the old lift so we can reach the high places and for some nice cafeteria
tables available when the school replaced those with new ones. The American Legion also donated over
20 tables.

Our intent is to provide our youth and seniors with a place to make their lives more enjoyable and
fuifilling. The old library will accommodate several table tennis tables and a couple pool tables. The
media center can again be used to provide computer technology with available Wi-Fi service, The
previous activity room should provide plenty of space for a senior card room, or to enjoy live music. The
gymnasium will be open to shoot baskets for all and the playground and ball field will be used as it
always has.

We intend to reinstall the kitchen for food service to accommodate those that use the building and the
general public. Probably it will be a service provided for morning and mid-day only.

The large rooms in both the new addition and the former bus garage classrooms will be available for
meetings plus community and family celebrations.

Most of the older building (built 1922) will be used as an American History Center. The concept is new
and we hope it will be the high lite of the Community Center. Hopefully it will draw visitors form outside
our area.

Along with what we've already mentioned there is a long list of suggested uses that will be considered: a
special use period dedicated to different student age groups, community service and educational
meetings and many more opportunities that can benefit Mecosta County.



We have obtained a loan to get our project started and will do our best through various fund raising
initiatives to make our facility seif- Supporting. As we have achieved non-profit status {501 (c) (3} with
the RS those wishing to donate will be abie to deduct from their taxes. We also have grant writing
capability on our board,

Our intent is to provide these facilities to our youth and seniors without cost including the American
History Center for all school age children,

money to rebuild our ball fields and we hope you will view the community center as a project worthy of
your support too,

Facebook.

Our grand opening is planned for the 26" of July 2019 to help celebrate Morley’s 150" anniversary. We
are planning activities around that celebration.

We certainiy would appreciate any feedback or ideas you would like to provide as this is for all our
community.

Gordon Galloway Board Members

Chairman Alvin Garpett Vice Chairman
Kay Johnston Secretary
Terry Stilson Treasurer
Linda Kizer Director
Henry Petersen Director
Joanne Reynolds Director

Jack Tramper Director



BIG RAPIDS CHARTER TOWNSHIP BOARD Item g
REGULAR MEETING TUESDAY, JANUARY 8, 2019
UNAPPROVED

CALL TO ORDER: 7:00 p.m.
ROLL CALL: Stanek, Fountain, Currie, Bean, Everett, Geib, Merendino present.
All lead in the pledge of Allegiance.

PUBLIC COMMENT: Brandon Maneke — Employee Handbook

SPECIAL APPERANCE: Dave Cushway Superintendent of the City of Big Rapids Wastewater Treatment Plant discussed the
madifications to the DEQ permit.

ADDITIONS TO AGENDA: Websile discussion item 8 under new business.
CORESPONDENCE: Letter from Auditor: So noled and filed.

APPROVAL OF: December 4th meeting minutes: A motion to approve the December 4, 2018 minutes was made by Currie.
Seconded by Everett. Motion passed unanimously.

FINANCIAL
1. November Treasurer Report: Approved as printed.
2. Financial Report: Approved as printed.

APPROVAL OF BILLS:
1. Accounts Payable: A motion to approve accounts payable in the amount of $141,647.00 checks #31371-
31420, 4 EFTs, and HRA checks #1158-1162 was made by Currie. Seconded by Bean. Motion passed
unanimously on a roll call vote.
2. Payroll: A motion lo approve payroll in the amount of $19,870.50 checks #11458-#11498 and stub 12 and
check #11499 voided due to printing error was made by Currie. Seconded by Bean. Motion passed
unanimously on a roll call vote.

MONTHLY REPORTS:

Board of Review:

Fire Committee:
Planning Commission:
9. Supervisor:

Approved as printed.

1. Building/Planning Department;
2. Cemetery and Grounds:

3. Fire Department:

4. Sewer Department:

5. Water Department;

6.

7.

8.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:
1. Zoning Ordinance Amendment: A motion to accept language changed recommended by the Planning
Commission to the Zoning Ordinance as submitted was made by Everetl. Seconded by Bean. Motion passed
unanimously,

NEW BUSINESS:
1. Changes and addition of {Prohibition of Weapons) to Employee manual: A motion to make changes to the
Employee Handbook:
*  Adding wording “When the holiday falls on a Saturday the holiday will be the Friday before. When the
holiday fall on a Sunday the holiday will be the Monday after.” under Holidays.

Adding prohibition of Weapons after bullet points under Employee Conduct and Work Rules.

Clarification of pay day month under Pay Day.

Add Day after Thanksgiving under paid Holiday.

Change earning and use of sick leave and vacation from days to hours.

was made by Currie. Seconded by Bean. Motion passed unanimously on a rall call vote.

2. Set annual mileage rate: IRS rate is $0.58. A motion fo set the mileage rate at $0.58 for 2019 was made by
Geib. Seconded by Currie. Motion passed unanimously.

3. Recommendation from Roads committee for 2020 major work: A motion to tentatively approve the road
commitiee recommendation for 2020 was made by Everett. Seconded by Fountain. Motion passed with Currie
voting no.

4. Water Operator Contract renewal: A motion to renew the Water Trealment Facility Contract with Kevin
Cushway in the amount of $12,500 per year for 2 years was made by Fountain. Seconded by Bean. Motion
passed unanimously on a roll call vote.



5. 2018 Budget Adjustment recommendation: A motion to approve Budget Adjusments:

Deduct 101-171-702-010 Supervisor Deputy $2,500.00
Add 101-101-875.000 Township Board-capital outlay $ 400.00
Add 101-721-801.000 Planning Commission-Professional Services $4,000.00

6. Request from fire committee to borrow $75,000 from revolving loan fund. No action.

7. Recommendation from fire committee to purchase a new chassis and have current tank remounted: No
action.

PUBLIC COMMENT: Brandon Maneke — Employees, Bob Maguire - Roads
ADJOURNMENT: 8:28 p.m.



Item «“C”
BIG RAPIDS CHARTER TOWNSHIP BOARD

REGULAR MEETING TUESDAY, JANUARY 15, 2019

JOINT MEETING OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES AND PLANNING COMMISSION
UNAPPROVED

CALL TO ORDER: Board of Trustees 7:00 p.m.
ROLL CALL: Stanek, Fountain, Currie, Bean, Everett, Merendino present. Geib absent.
All lead in the Pledge of Allegiance.

CALL TO ORDER: Planning Commission
ROLL CALL: Wethington, Bean, Cook, Davis, Hampson, Oliver, Sweppenheiser present.

State of the Township Address given by Supervisor Stanek.

Visioning Time: Tom Hogenson — Township and City working together on key
projects such as roads, utilities, broadband.

Mark Gifford — Joint training with city and township.

Mark Sweppenheiser- Master Plan.

Bill Stanek — How should the township proceed on the Marijuana issue.

Mel Seiter — Marijuana presentation telling pros and cons.

Jerry Everett — FSU involvement.

Penny — Sports Complex.

Pete Kent — Senior Center.

Jim Sandy — Dragon Bike Trail.

Brandon Maneke — Repair and maintain Northland Drive sidewalk and extend
sidewalk on the west side.

Public Comment: none

Adjournment: 7:40 p.m.



01/31/2019 04:33 PM Check Register Report For Big Rapids Charter Tov ltem “G”
For Check Dates 02/01/2019 to 02/01/2019

Check Physical
Check Date Bank Check Humber HName Gross Check Amount
02/01/2019 GEN 111500 MASON, BRENT 3,740.00 3,128.32
02/01/2019 GEN 111501 STANEK, WILLIAM F 2,650.00 643,15
02/01/2019 GEN 111502 DOUGLASS, PERRY IV A 821.75 633.45
02/01/2019 GEN 111503 AMBLER, ALLEN § 118.17 102.93
02/01/201%9 GEN 111504 TUBBS, JAMES 1,085.81 995,54
02/01/2019 GEN 1115065 PEREZ, ADAM 14.01 12.20
02/01/2019 GEN 111506 WILLIAMS, TRAVIS A 281.91 248.36
02/01/201%9 GEN 111507  JOHNSON, CARMELITA §. 186.12 154.88
02/01/2019 GEN 111508 CHAPMAN, JAMES M 483.96 426.36
02/01/2019 GEN 111509 BIRD, RANDY 518.16 456,50
02/01/2019 GEN 111510 SUGGATE, ALAYNA 349,32 274,30
02/01/2019 GEN 111511 LOWNEY, AUSTIN M 353.60 307.83
02/01/2019 GEN 111512 PRANGER, RYAN E 406.26 314.11
02/01/2019 GEN 111513 WINDER-RUDD, DOMINIC D 244.80 215.67
02/01/2019 GEN 111514 HAUGER, DRYDEN © 53.40 47.05
02/01/201% GEN 11151% BRYANT, ELIZABETH L 22.47 14.96
02/01/2019 GEN 111516 WYMA, NICHOLAS A 492.87 434.21
02/01/201¢ GEN 111517 JONES, JERRAD C 495,69 418.80
02/01/201% GEN 111518 HANEY, PAUL J 286.19 235.06
02/01/2019 GEN 111519 SPRIK, HANMAH M 512.79 432.16
02/01/2019 GEN 111520 KRAUSENECK, SHANE C 428.01 365.94
02/01/2019 GEN 111521 FITZGERALD, LINDSAY P 101.52 89.45
02/01/2019 GEN 111522 THATCHER, SHANE W 382.53 326.58
02/01/2019 GEN 111523 GILBERT, SHERRI § 216.00 190.30
02/01/201% GEN 111524 FOUNTAIN, RENE M 3,416.67 2,585.96
02/01/2019 GEN 111525 DIETRICH, GEORGE 944.90 833.63
02/01/2019 GEN 111526 ANTOR, GERALD A 946.40 864.94
02/01/2019 GEN 111527 CALIFF, MICHAEL H 262.30 231.09
02/01/201% GEN 111528 CURRIE, PENNY M 3,266.67 899.45
02/01/2019 GEN 111529 BECHAZ, MARY L 442.80 390.11
02/01/2019 GEN 111530 MANEKE, BRANDON K 3,513.16 2,609.98
02/01/2019 GEN 111531 OLIVER, GORDOMN 41.20 36.30
02/01/2019 GEN 111532 SWEPPENHEISER, MARK A 41.20 38.05
02/01/2019 GEN 111533 < Check added as Void > 0.00 .00
02/01/2019 GEN 111534 < Check added as Void > 0.00 0.00
02/01/2019 GEN 111535 < Check added as Void > 0.00 0.00
02/01/2019 GEN 111536 < Check added as Veid > 0.00 0.00
02/01/2019 GEN 111537 < Check added as Veid > 0.00 0.00
02/01/2018 GEN 111538 < Check added as Void > 0.00 0.00
02/01/2019 GEN 111539 DAVIS, MARY B 41.20 38.05
02/01/2019 GEN 111540 COOK, ZACHARY F 41.20 38.05
02/01/2019 GEN 111541  WETHINGTON, AMANDA R 41.20 36.30
02/01/2019 GEN 111542 GEIB, ANTHONY C 145.83 128.48
02/01/2019 GEN 111543 EVERETT, JERALD D 145,83 128.49
02/01/2019 GEN 111544  MERENDINO, CHRISTOPHER B 145.83 128.48

02/01/2019 GEN 111545 DOUGLASS, PERRY IV A 225.00 158.23



01/31/2019 04:33 PM Check Register Report For Big Rapids Charter Township
For Check Dates 02/01/2019 te 02/01/2019

Check Physical 1
Check Date Bank Check Number Name Gross Check Amount Dy
02/01/2019 GEN STUB13 BEAN, CARMEN 145,83 0.00
Totals: Number of Checks: 047 28,056.56 19,613.69

Total Physical Checks: 46
Tetal Check Stubs:



0070 00°0 00°0 00°0 000 IInp-sIaJsuUrl] TPI0L
SE'D P9 FES ‘P8BS LE"L2S'6 9€£°0L5'92Z 00°S0T'119 r2an)Tpuadxg Tejor
00°0 00°0 00°0 000 00°0 ‘Ui-saajysueil Telol
ELTL £V ZE6°'L6S 00°0 LG L90°05 00°000'8F% ranuaasy Te3jOL

aNnd YIM3s - 065 pung

00°001 {00°00S) oo 0 00" 006 00°0 X3 9 SINNIATY 3O IAN ONIQTING JFONVYING AYAIIRID - 106 pung
00°0 000 00°0 000 00°0 tsanjTpusdx3 Tel0l
00°0 00" 0 0070 000 00°0 IUI-SI3JSURIL TeiOL
007001 (00 00%) 00°0 00" 00S 00" 0 1anuasay Telol

ONIQTING FONVHING XHALAWID - [0t pung

00°00T (2Z°0L9°0T} 00°0 zZ 0L ‘ot 000 SIHALIONIAXT 3 SINNIATY 30 L3N :dNNA AYVYEIT - 1.2 pung
00°0 00° 006 '82 00°0 00°0 00°006 ‘82 :3an3Tpuadxy Tejol
000 00°0 00°0 000 00°0 Iur-sIejsuel)] Tejcl
26" 9E 8L 6E2Z°'8BT 00°0 ZZ 0L9 ‘01 00°006°82 i9nuUaady [EIoL

aNnd AYWHEIT - fiZ pung

Lo €8 6L°696°C (PE-TES'E) (6L SPE'T) 00°029°1 3dX3 3 SINNIATY 30 L3N :0ONN3 NOILDAASHI ONIATING - b2 pung
L9 TZ T198'FS PETES'E 6L EPE‘E 00°s08’8s raan3tpusdx3 Telog
0e-o 00°0 i ) 0G0 00°0 iuI-sIajsuell Te3loL
0E" b 00" LZB LS 00°0 00°865°2 00°62¢ ‘09 ianuaaay fejol

aNN3 NOILDAISHI ONIQTING - gz pung

00°0 00°0 0070 00°0 000 dXd 3 SAONIATY JO IIN :ANOD “ATH AOHIWI JIHSHMOL - 9pz pung
00°0 00°000°pS 000 000 00°000'FS raanyTpuadxa Teiog
00°0 00°0 00°0 000 00°0 tuI-sI1ajsuell felol
00°0 00°000 %S 000 0070 00°000 ‘%5 1anUaASY Tel0g

GNNd "AZH AOHAWI JIHSNMOL - 9vZ pung

000 00°0 00°0 00" 0 00°0 3 3 SANNIAGY IO 13N GNNE INIWIDUOANT MYT HONOIT - 212 pung
00°0 00°002°S 00°0 000 00°009°S :aanjTpuadx3 [eloL
000 000 0070 0¢-0 o¢-0 TuUi~-sIalsuel], Te3cl
00°0 00 009°S 00°0 000 00°009°S ianusasy Teaol

aHNd INIWIDUOANI MY HONDIT - 21z puni

197292 (Z6°2Z0E’1R) {61°8LB ST} Z6°20L°99 00°00F ‘S2 SUNLIONIAXE 7 SIEANIATY IO 13N :aNnd 3¥I3 - 90z pung
£E°6 £9°G56°GAT 61°8L8°ST LE"FRT ‘6T 0000 'S502 raanjtpuadxd Tejol
00°0 000 000 00°0 00°0 IUI-s3aJsueal elct
TCLE TL 259 k01 00°0 6T LF8'SH 00°00S‘0EZ iPNuaAdy TeE3lOL

aNnd 3413 - 907 pung

00°00T ({TF FVO‘08) 000 I 6v0°08 00°o0 TANE4X3 9 SINNIATY JO 13N :QGHA3 13FYLS IV4IIDINNW - pOZ pung
00’0 00°000°S12 00°0 060 00°000°S12 laan)Tpusdxg Tel0l
00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 FUI~-SIajsuei] Telol
ETLE 66656 'FET 00°0 Tk "FE0 ‘08 00000 'STZ canuaasy Telol

aNnNd L33YLS TY4IJINOW - $0Z punhd

00°0 000 000 00°'0 00°0 SANNIATY J0 13N NIYMIAIS HOAIMH0OD 13AFULS A¥Hdd - £0Z pund
00" 0 00°000°FS 000 000 00°000°FS ‘aanyTpuadxg [elol
00°0 00°0 000 oc o 00°0 ‘ur-siaysuell felol
000 00°000°%S 00°0 00°0 00°000'%S ianuaasy TeI0]

NIYMIAIS HOAIWHOD LATWLS A¥uEd - £0z pung

69°LL ZV BBETT (5B OLLTE) 85159 ‘6¢€ 00°0V0'1S QHIEXA ¥ SIANNIATY JO LAN :0NNd ONIIVHIAO TY4INZ9 - 10T pung
g81°%§ 0" GSS ‘089 GB OLL ZE 96 F00’LE 00 095 LTL :aanytpuadxy TR0l
L6"6 9k EF6 169 00°0 b6 969 ‘oL 00°009 ’89L lanuaasy TEI0L

annd 9NIlv¥Id0 TVHINTD - T0T pung

aasn (TVWYONEY) TYWNON {3ASYAUDEA) FSYIUONTI  ('IYWHONEY) TYHION 139and dIAN3WY HOILdI¥DS3a HIGHNAN 1D

19049 % ANV 6T0Z/82/20 HINOW 6T0Z/8BZ/20 6102

JTaVIINAY

nnmuu Ewﬂ—

¥0d ALIAILOY

ONYTIVE dLA

dIHSNMOL SQIdYY 9I€ HO4 ILHOd3Y FUNLIANIAXI ANV FNNZATH

6T0¢/82/20 ONIOGNZ AOId3ad

umo], sprdey b1g :ga
T1Id :assq
Wd 82:TT 6T02/T10/20



SLobBz (S8 TLP'VLT) (977695 '€9) 58°906°89C 00" SEV ‘b6 STHENLIANIIXE % SINNIATY JO LIN

9E" b 10°SPO'PPE T 9Z°695°€9 66°b25 88 00°0L5°2ED’Z SANN3 TTY - STANLIANIAXT TYL0L

891 9T ELS'69L'T 0G"0 P8 TER ‘LSE o0°so0‘LeT’e SaNNI TTV - SEANIATY TVIOL

0070 00°0 00°0 00" 0 00°0 IONIdX3 ¥ SINNIATY J0 13H :gNAJ DHIYYITD TIOHAWd - 068 pung
000 00°0 000 000 00°0 ia1n3Tpuadxy Tejol
00" 0 00°0 00°0 000 000 fanuaasy Te3ol

QNNd INIHYATO TIOHAYS - 0GR pung

0070 00° 006 00°0 000 00" 006 aNIdXd 3 SINNIATE J0 LAN :AHILIWID MIIA ANYTHOIH - 11r pung
00°0 0070 00°0 00" 0 00°0 PINQ-5I935uURT] TRICL
00°0 g0 o 00°0 00°0 00°0 :aInjTpuadxd Te3oL
00°0 00° 006 00°0 00°0 00°G06 1anuaasy TEI0L

AYILIWID MIIA ANVIHODIH - (1L pung

00°0 00'00T 'S 00°0 00°0 00°00T’s SAYNLIANIAXI 3 SIANIATY J0 IAN :QMNI OUIIH - BOL PUNI
00°0 000 000 000 00°0 taanjTpuadxg Tejol
000 00°00T°S 000 00°0 00°00T'S ranusasy TEIO0L

aNnd OHIIW - 80L Pung

007001 (96°91T} 00°0 96911 00" 0 d ¥ SIAONIATY 30 L3N ONNd NOILDITIOD XWI INIYEND - £04 pung
00" 0 00°000°T 00°0 00°0 00°'000'T :aanaTpuadxy Telol
0L IT F0-£88 00°0 96911 c0°000°'T anuasay TejOL

AN NOILJA'TTOD XYL INIWEND - £0L puna

0070 000 00" 0 00°0 00" 0 LION3IdXT % S3NNIAIY JO LIN SANNI XADNEOY 9 ISNHl - 10L pung
000 000 00°0 000 000 1axnyTpusdxy TeIOL
0o 0 00" 0 g0’ o 000 00°0 ranuanay Te3Iol

SANNd ADNEOY % ISNYUL - T0L pung

00° 001 {S0°098°08) 00°0 S0°098°0% 000 3d 0 L3N ¢ JULWAITIaY ITgag/butpungiey 3gsq £10Z - ¥6S PUnd
00°0 00° 08t ‘€S 000 00°0 00" 0BE‘ES texnjTpuadxy (elol
82766 S6°61S5°2C 0o0°0 S0° 09805 00° 08t '£S ianuaAsy TRI0L

IUBWRITIBY ITq3a/BUTpuniay I92g £10Z - k65 PuUni

000 000 a0 0 000 000 SIANIATY 30 JIN :QNN3 ‘IVLIGYD 9 ININAINDT dIMEAS - €65 PUNg
[11101] 000 00°0 00°0 00°0 :aanytTpuadry TElOL
00°0 000 00°0 00" 0 000 ranuaaay TeI0L

QNNd TYLIAYD 7 INIWAIN0D3I "IMAS - £66 Pung

SL°9 (62°62L'¥2) (16°198°'1) {(TL°06L°T) (00°025°92) STUNLIANIAXE ¥ SINNIATY 30 L3IN :ONAd YII¥M - T6G pung
2979 6b-85Z2'9¢ 1671981 T6°T98 1 00702182 raanyTpuadxs felol
00°0 00°0 00" 0 00°0 0c°o tul-sisjsuer], Te3I0]
£V Y 0Z2°626°T 00°0 0B*0L 00°009°'1 19nuU2AY TRI0L

AN d31lYM - TsS PUNJ

69°E9 6L L6E'ET {Le"L2Zs’'6} 12 Lok ’Ee 00°S68'9€ STUNLIANIAXT ¥ SINNIAFY 30 L3N ANNE HIMIS - 065 pung

aNnd ¥3M3s - 066 puhj

a3asn {"IYWHONEY) TYHEON (FSYIUDIA) FSYIAMINI ("IYHHONEY) TYIWNHON LI20NE G3IANIWT HOI1LdIdD53a HIAgGHON 19

1939 % JONYIVd 6102/82/20 HLNOW 6102/8Z/20 610¢
FT1GYTIYAY 403 ALIAILOVY FONYIVE LA

z/z  iabeg

6102/8¢/70 SNIANI QOI¥ad

dIHSNMOL S0Idvd DIF ¥0d L¥043Y JHNLIANTIXT

aNY

umo], sptdey btg :€Q
1119 :19s()

ANNIAZH WY 8E£:T1T 6T0Z/T0/20



02/01/2019 11:32 AM CHECK REGISTER FOR BIG RAPIDS TOWNSHIP Item “F”
User: SHERI CHECK DATE FROM 02/01/2019 - 02/05/2019

DB: Big Rapids Twp

Check Date Bank Check Vendor Vendor Name Amount
Bank GEN GENERAL TOWNSHIP CHECKING

02/01/2019 GEN 9930045 (E) CHEOO CHEMICAL BANK CENTRAL 5,70B.20
02/01/2019 GEN 9930046 (E) JHIOO JOHN HANCOCK LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY Z,615.96
02/01/2019 GEN 9930047 (E) STAOOD STATE OF MICHIGAN 836.64
02/01/2019 GEN 9930048 (E) VOYA VOYA FINANCIAL 4,025.41
02/05/2019 GEN 31431 ACCO0 ACCIDENT FUND COMPANY 1,313.30
062/05/2019 GEN 31432 BIG RAPIDS BIG RAPIDS FLEET & AUTO REPAIR, INC 3,735.86
62/05/2019 GEN 31433 BIG04 BIG RAPIDS AUTO AND TRUCK PARTS 17.50
02/05/2019 GEN 31434 BS5&00 BS&A SOFTWARE 3,033.33
02/05/2019 GEN 31435 CHAQL CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS 498,35
02/05/2019 GEN 31436 CITOO CITY OF BIG RAPIDS 18.93
02/05/2019 GEN 31437 CONOOD CONSUMERS ENERGY 2,701.03
02/05/2019% GEN 31438 DAVID K DAVID KIRWIN 400,00
02/05/2019 GEN 31439 DIETRICH GEORGE DIETRICH 152.80
02/05/201% GEN 31440 DINGES DINGES FIRE COMPANY 558.24
02/05/2019 GEN 31441 FAROL BIG RAPIDS FARM & GARDENW 245,00
02/05/2019 GEN 31442 FIROOD FIRST NATIONAL BANK 1,378.18
02/05/201% GEN 31443 GREQO2 GREAT LAKES ENERGY 19.96
02/05/201% GEN 31444 HCCOO0 HCC PUBLIC RISK CLAIM SERVICE 10, 000.00
02/05/2019% GEN 31445 KEVIN C KEVIN CUSHWAY 1,041.67
02/05/2019% GEN 31446 MECO1I MECOSTA COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION 388.16
02/05/2019 GEN 31447 MENDO MENARDS 572.70
02/05/2018% GEN 31448 NORTHWEST NORTHWEST KENT MECHANICAL CO. 3,838.07
02/05/2019 GEN 31449 PIO0O THE PIONEER GROUP 84.38
02/05/2019 GEN 31450 PROCO PROGRESSIVE AE 2,782.60
02/05/2019 GEN 31431 PSI00 PRINTING SYSTEMS, INC. 552.66
02/05/2019 GEN 31452 SB300 SMALL BUSINESS ADMIN SERVICES LLC 52.50
GEN TOTALS:

Total of 26 Checks;: 46,571.53
Less 0 Void Checks: C.00

Total of 26 Disbursements:

46,571.53



Item “H”

Monthly Permit List 01/31/2019
“
Building
ﬁ
Permit # Contractor Job Address Fee Total Const. Value
PB19-0001 BAILEY CHARLES 17800 230TH AVENUE $835.00 $160,000

Work Description: New Single Family res. modular dwelling on walkour basement wiht attached garage and porch.

PB19-0002 PLETZ SCOTT 20825 EDGEWOOD DRIVE $386.00 $26,015

Work Description: Conversion of existing attached garage to a rec. room

PB19-0003 DECKER, RONALD G. ET UX 16585 230TH AVENUE $227.00 $5,040

Work Description: Sunroom addition to existing single family dwelling.

Total Permits For Type: 3
Total Fees For Type: $1,448.00
Total Const. Value For Type: $191,055
Electrical
PE19.0001 YESMUNT, NORMAN & JANET 19115 FOX GLOVE CIRCLE $91.00 50
Work Description: 200 amp service, 50 ft. feeder, 1 mnspection.
PE19-0002 STUDIO NAILS 15400 WALDRON WAY $167.00 50
Work Description: 2 light groups, 3 inspections.
PE19-0003 MEIJER INC 15400 WALDRON WAY $136.00 50

Work Description: 1 - 200 amp service, 3 breakers, 50 fr. feeder, 1 inspection.

PE19-0004 DECKER, RONALD G. ET UX 16385 230TH AVENUE $98.00 30

Work Description: 2 circuits, 25 lights, 1 - 220v outlet, 1 inspection.

PE19-0005 BAILEY CHARLES 17800 230TH AVENUE $313.00 S0

Work Description:

Total Permits For Type: 5
Total Fees For Type: $805.00
Total Const. Value For Type: $0
Mechanical
PM19-0001  YESMUNT, NORMAN & JANET 19115 FOX GLOVE CIRCLE $80.00 50
Work Description: Gas piping, 1 inspection.
PM19-0002 L&\ JOHNSON PROP LLC 1305 NORTH STATE STREET $130.00 50

Work Description: 1 gas burning furnace, 500 ft. piping, 1 inspection.




PA19-0003 UNIVERSITY CLUB ESTATES 21515 UNIVERSITY DR $230.00 S0

Work Description:

Total Permits For Type: 3
Total Fees For Type: $440.00
‘Total Const. Value For Type: $0
Plumbing
PP19-0001 STUDIO NAILS 15400 WALDRON WAY §218.00 50

Work Description: Plumbing alterations for nail salon in Meijer store building,

Total Permits For Type: 1
Total Fees For Type: $218.00
Total Const. Value For Type: $0

Zoning Clearance
“

Permit # Contractor Job Address Fee Total Const. Value
PZ19-0001 BAILEY CHARLES 17800 230TH AVENUE §25.00 §0

Work Description: Residential Zoning Clearance for new single family dwelling and for 3,168 sq. ft. pole Ag building.
PZ19-0002 DECKER, RONALD G. ET UX 16585 230TH AVENUE $0.00 S0

Work Description: Addition of 12' x 14' (168 sq. ft.) sunroom to existing single family residence.

PZ1%-0003 RESURRECTION LIFE CHURCH 14734 215TH AVENUE $350.00 $0

Work Description: Special Use Permit request for Christine Huntey to operate a Childcare center in the Children's area of Resurrection
Life Church.
Request was received on January 15, 2019 and processed on January 17 as SUP 19-001. Public heaning will take place
at 7:30 p.m. on February 12, 2019 during the regular mecting of the Big Rapids Township Planning Commission.

‘Total Permits For Type: 3

Total Fees For Type: $375.00

Total Const. Value For Type: $0

Report Summary
Grand Total Fees: $3,286.00
Populaton: All Records Gr and TOtal PemﬁtS: 15
Permit.Datelssued Between Grand Total Const. Value: $191,055
1/1/2019 12:00:00 AM AND

113172019 11:59:59 PM



|tem 0 b

Big Rapids Charter Township

Cemetery and Grounds Monthly Report
January 2019

January activity:

¢ Total of 6 deceased interred to cemetery vault

e Made weekly status checks on heater at Hills of Mitchell Creek lift station
¢ Routine snow removal

¢ Installed new directional sign in main room of township offices

¢ Scanned multiple documents into township assessing software

Month summary:

The month of January was rather uneventful, until the very end with the large winter
storm we received. Todd with Northwest Kent reported to Bill that the heater at the Hills of
Mitchell Creek lift station has been shutting off during weekly generator tests. I have been
making routine checks there to make sure that the heater is running after these tests, until a fix
has been made.

Also, I have begun helping David, our assessor, scan in numerous documents into our
assessing software. Much like our cemetery program, there are hundreds of documents, and once
all have been loaded in, it will make David’s job much easier.

On the 15™, I attended a meeting with Bill, Rene, Carman, and Brent, to discuss the
employee handbook. This meeting was very productive and pleasant. I am greatly appreciative to
the township board, and those 3 board members specifically for agreeing to have this meeting. I
felt that the township sees genuine value and concern towards its’ employees, and their well-
being.

Respectfully submitted,

Brandon Maneke

Grounds Manager




FIRE DEPARTMENT REPORT It i
FEBRUARY 2019 em “g»
General:
The department continues to run well. We have submitted our new Standard Operating Guidelines/Procedures for Board
approval. Many hours of work went into this project and numerous revisions were made to them before submission. We
look forward to the opportunity to finalize them with the Board and finally get them implemented.

Call Volume:
Total calls for the month of January 2019: 30
16 Medical, 4 Structure Fire, 1 Grass Fire/Controlled Burn, 6 Auto Accident, 0 Power Line Down, 0 Vehicle Fire, 0
Smoke/Odor, 0 Dumpster Fire, 1 Standby, 0 Collapse, 0 Gas Leak, 0 Inspection, 0 Airport Emergency, 0 Fire Alarm, 0
Water Rescues, | Service Call, 0 Fire Investigation, 0 Elevator/Technical Rescue and 0 Drone Activations.
Year to Date Call volume 2018: 30
Year to Date Response Times:
Turnout Time (dispatch to truck en-route): 4 minutes and 42 seconds.
Response Time (dispatch to on scene): 10 minutes and 26 seconds.
Year to Date Call Locations:
Austin
Barton
Big Prairie
BR TWP
City of Big Rapids
Colfax
Evart
Grant
Green
Mecosta
Morley
Morton
Norwich
Osceola County

(=] =] K]

[
Uh

olo|lo|e|nw|o|Io|o|o

Personnel:
We would like to add Randy Buys to our roster. Randy is a local resident with many ties to the area, He has been
interviewed by the Officers, Chief and Supervisor.

Training:
Training this month consisted of monthly truck checks, Communications, Reports/Documentation, Ropes and Knots.

Renz.lirs Completed:
None to report.

Station Maintenance:
Nothing to report

Budget/Purchasing over $2.500.00:

We are requesting to upfit the Tender again this month. The three chassis quotes were submitted to the board at the
January meeting.




JAN/31/2019/THU §4:05 P¥ Northwest Kent Mech. FaX Mo, B16 696 9327 Item “K”

Northwest Kent Mechanical Co.

Commercial » Industrial » Institutional
P.0. Box 216K = 4095 16 Mile Road
Cedar Springs, MI 49319
(616) 696-9026 ¢ Fax. (616) 696-9327
wwwv.nwhkentmech.com

January 30, 2019

Mr. Bill Stanek

Big Rapids Twp.
14212 Northland Dr.
Big Rapids, MI 49307

RE: Monthly Lift Station Report

Dear Bill,

We had a pretty good month at the lift stations. We got four Mission units installed and
online. We also finally figured out that the heater issue at Hills of Mitchell Creek is
caused by the generator transferring power during its weekly exercise. We are not sure if
that issue has been resolved yet. We are hoping to get a couple more Mission units online
next week.

Overall, the lift stations are functioning properly.

Sincerely,

Todd Shank
Northwest Kent Mechanical Co.



Item s« »

y I(zzS Tl;JﬂJlu,C .z:a&éﬁ!;.l
o l,/ 021_ OC/)- ﬁ’s Bj 6{11’
. ﬁl{;/fk lf/c\?fcr Plah

7%%7 90’7

ALL opecd iins ace wocmal B 44, ol AUL bos5rer
/L-M);-J o U’acby PP %cﬁfh@ 7m,,(. el /-Wya £,
MJC/C"U 7\51;/ /'c':/w'“:j a ?Dcrpf F/a;u, A vaciid e
2['}7»*”07 lebes  woe B9 Gove) | pls wfiue [lestesnre
emed Clect conte MW*"C“@ -‘/*‘57’%.5 20 M’Cé"-\? )
Cmee by ,_u.r"ka-cj M ‘mﬁ Fred . PV

34 5 . Tem k. /nw;“rw;(y & ehlomis  cesil,. ]
o acomd 03 com frgi . The fonplos s
Fhrs cbww’rff ace /JchaJie_g/ C;,mme_@ o Ma,[;i

7+ heso G ce Ma%r‘y S Y encd “J LJ,"// 'S mnf"
1A 713 f%ﬂi‘ﬁﬁa[ { oo J;quu}.\.?.

Sems e fan
ap g
.y Y



'tem “M”

Fire Committee

January 17, 2019

7:00 pm

Tom Crandell, Arron Holswarth, Carman Bean, Jim Tubbs, and Perry Douglas present.

Also, present were supervisor Stanek and Bob McGuire

were

Kenworth $96,925.00
International $94,198.38
Freightliner $92,962.00

The cost to transfer the tank is $64,491,77.

The Kenworth was not an extended cap, the other two were. The recommendation from the
department was to 80 with the Freightliner for a total of $157,453.77 with tank transferred.

Other equipment concerns:
The flat bed is almost complete.

Rescue Unit needs a charger to keep the batteries up and has been ordered, around $800.00
Engine # 1 sill needs a new Pro Foam unit, Perry will have price for next meeting

Jim said he was almost finished with the SOP’s for the department, Bill asked that be forwarded with
finished so they can be sent to the board to look over before the February meeting,

Adjourned at 8:30 pm

Bill Stanek



'tem “N”

Industrial Park Committee Meeting Minutes
January 21, 2019
7:30 AM
Lerner, Csernai & Faith Offices

Meeting called to order by chair lerry Garner at 7:00 am.

Todd Csernai, Pete Kent, lerry Garner, Chris Merendino, Bill Schriver, Jim Sandy and Bill Stanek present
Carman Bean, excused

Stanek reported on the solar request we had.

When questioned about other options, they said they wouldn’t make any changes, and about a week
later they pulled their lease option.

Talked about Renaissance Zone expiring and what options were available,

Discussed a possible lead

Chris asked a lot of questions and was brought up to date on the park, will do some talking to people he
has contact with,

Discussed what can be done with water plant.

Adjourned at 8:30

8ill Stanek



to the Township as possible.

Employees may be required to provide: medical certifications supporting the need
for leave if the leave is due to a serious health condition of the employee or
employee’s family member; periodic recertification of the serious health condition:
and periodic reports during the leave regarding the employee’s status and intent to
return to work. Employees must return to work immediately after the serious health
condition ceases, and employees who have taken leave because of their own
serious health condition must submit a fitness-for-duty certification before being
allowed to return to work.

Leave may be taken on an intermittent or reduced schedule to care for an iliness;
yet, may not be taken intermittently for the care of a newborn or newly adopted
child. When leave is taken intermittently, the Township may transfer the employee

to another position with equivalent pay and benefits, which is better suited to
periods of absence.

Subject to certain conditions, the employee or the Township may choose to use

accrued paid leave (such as sick leave or vacation leave) concurrent with FMLA
leave.

The Township will maintain group health insurance coverage for an employee on
family and medical leave on the same terms as if the employee had continued work.
When applicable, arrangements will be made for the employee to pay their share of
health insurance premiums while on leave. The Township may recover premiums

paid to maintain health coverage for an employee who fails to return to work from
family and medical leave.

I an employee would like the Township to maintain other paid benefits during the
period of leave, premiums and charges which are partially or wholly paid by the
employee must continue to be paid by the employee during the leave time.

Family and medical leave will not result in the loss of any employment benefit
accrued prior to the date on which the leave commenced. However, an employee
on family and medical leave does not continue to accrue benefits (e.g., sick leave or
vacation leave) during the period of family and medical leave. Questions regarding
particular benefits should be directed to undefined.

Upon returning from FMLA leave, an employee will be restored to his/her original
job or an equivalent job with equivalent benefits, pay, seniority, and other

employment terms and conditions as provided by the Family and Medical Leave
Act.

Taking another job while on family or medical leave or any other authorized leave
may lead to disciplinary action, up to and including discharge.

Workers' Compensation

12



As required by law, the Township provides workers' compensation benefits for the
protection of employees with work-related injuries or ililnesses. Workers'
compensation insurance provides coverage to employees who receive job- related
injuries or illnesses. |f an employee is injured or becomes ill as a result of his/her
job, it is the employee's responsibility to immediately notify a supervisor of their
injury in order to receive benefits. Report every injury or illness to a
supervisor/department head, regardless of severity. Additiona! information
regarding workers' compensation is available from the Township Clerk.

Section 4 - On the Job Practices and Policies

Employment Records

In order to obtain employment, you provided the Township with personal
information such as your address and telephone number. This information is saved
in your personnel records. Please inform the Township Clerk of any changes to
your personal employment information, including your emergency

contact. Changes to your address, marita! status, etc. can affect your withholding
tax and benefit coverage.

Upon written request, the Township will permit employees to inspect their personnel
records. Employees should contact the Township Clerk to schedule a time to view
personnel records. Inspections will occur in the presence of the Township Clerk. If
an employee disagrees with any portion of the personnel record and a correction

cannot be agreed upon, the employee may submit an explanatory statement to be
attached to the records.

Pay Day

All employees of the Township are paid on the first day of the month with the
exception of the month of December the pay day is December 31st. The employer
takes all reasonable steps to assure that employees receive the correct amount of
pay in each paycheck and that employees are paid promptly on the scheduled
payday.

By law, the Township is required to make deductions for Social Security, federal
income tax and any other appropriate taxes. These required deductions also may
include any court-ordered garnishments. Your payroll stub will also differentiate
between regular pay received and overtime pay received. If you believe there is an
error in your pay, bring the matter to the attention of the Township Clerk
immediately so the Township can resolve the issue as quickly as possible.

Overtime

If you are classified as a non-exempt employee (see Employment Categories
13



section), you will receive compensation for approved overtime work as follows:

1. You will be paid at straight time (i.e., your regular hourly rate of pay) for all
regular hours worked in a workweek totaling a forty (40) hour week.

2. You will be paid one and one-half times (1 %) your regular hourly rate of pay for
all hours werked paid beyond the fortieth (40) hour in any given workweek.

Your Supervisor is responsible for monitoring business activity and requesting
overtime work if it is necessary. Effort will be made to provide you with advance
notice in such situations. Please remember, however, that advance notice may not
always be possible and overtime work may be required to meet production or
staffing requirements.

Timekeeping

Employees must keep accurate records of time worked. Non-exempt employees
will be paid for all hours worked, including fractional parts of an hour. All employees
are expected to be at their workstations, ready to work at the beginning of their shit.
It is up to the employee to report all time worked and to work within the scheduled
and approved work hours.

Altering, falsifying, tampering with time records, or recording time on another
employee’s time record may result in disciplinary action, up to and including
termination of employment.

It is your responsibility to sign your time record to certify the accuracy of all time
recorded. Any errors in your time record should be reported immediately to your
Supervisor, who will attempt to correct legitimate errors.

Working Schedule

It is the employee’s responsibility to accurately report time worked and to conform
to work schedules and overtime policies in effect at the time. Work performed
outside of authorized work hours may lead to disciplinary action unless approved by
a supervisor in writing.

Employees will be provided meal and rest periods as required by law. Your
Supetrvisor/department head will provide further details.

Lactation Breaks

FFor up to one year after a child’s birth, any employee who is breastfeeding her child
will be provided reasonable break time for an employee to express breast milk. If
possible, the break time must run concurrently with rest and meal periods already
provided to the employee. If the break time cannot run concurrently with rest and
meal periods already provided to the employee, the break time will be unpaid,
subject to applicable law.

14



Big Rapids Charter Township will provide a place, other than a bathroom, that is
shielded from view and free from intrusion from coworkers and the public for the
employee’s use. The Township may not be able to provide additional break time if

doing so would seriously disrupt the Township's operations, subject to applicable
law.

Please advise the Township Clerk if you need break time and an area for this
purpose.

Township Vehicles

Operation of Vehicles: All employees authorized to drive Township-owned or
leased vehicles or personal vehicles in conducting Township business must
possess a current, valid driver's license and an acceptable driving record. Any
change in license status or driving record must be reported to management
immediately. A valid driver's license must be in your possession while operating a
vehicle off or on Township property. It is the responsibility of every employee to
drive safely and obey all traffic, vehicle safety, and parking laws or regulations.
Drivers must demonstrate safe driving habits at all times. Township-owned or
leased vehicles may be used only as authorized by supervisor/department head.
Employees who drive on Township business must abide by all state or local laws
prohibiting or limiting portable communication device (PCD) use, including cell
phones and tablets, while driving. Further, even if use is permitted, employees may
choose to refrain from using any PCD while driving.

Section 5 - Standards of Conduct
Non-Harassment Policy / Non-Discrimination Policy

Big Rapids Charter Township believes that each of us should be able to work in an
environment free of discrimination and harassment. To this end, the Township
prohibits and will not tolerate discrimination or harassment. This policy applies
equally to any form of discrimination or harassment based on any legally protected
status under local, state and/or federal law, including but not limited to sex, race,

color, religion, disability, pregnancy, national origin, age, sexual orientation, or
gender identity.

Harassment is verbal or physical conduct designed to threaten, intimidate or
coerce. It includes verbal taunting (including racial and ethnic slurs) which impairs
an employee’s ability to perform his or her job. Harassment includes:

Verbal conduct such as threats, epithets, derogatory comments, or slurs:

Visual conduct such as derogatory posters, photographs, cartoons, drawings, or
gestures;

I3



Physical conduct such as assault, unwanted touching, or blocking normal
movement.

If you feel that you have been subjected to conduct which violates this policy, you
should immediately report the matter to your Supervisor. If you are unable for any
reason to contact this person, or if you have not received a satisfactory response,
please contact the Township Supervisor.

Sexual Harassment

“Sexual Harassment” is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for
sexual favors and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when (a)
submission to or rejection of such advances, requests or conduct is made explicitly
or implicitly a term or condition of employment or as a basis for employment
decisions; (b) such advances, requests or conduct have the purpose or effect of
unreasonably interfering with an individual's work performance by creating an
intimidating, hostile, humiliating, or sexually offensive work environment. Examples
of sexual harassment can include but are not limited to: asking for sexual favors in
exchange for work benefits; the posting of sexually graphic materials; jokes; stories:
comments or innuendoes of a sexual nature; making sexual gestures or
expressions; unwanted touching of a person’s clothing or hair; whistling or “cat
calls”; staring at someone; or blocking or impeding a person’s path. It is the
responsibility of the employee who is subjected to harassment or who witnesses a
case of unlawful harassment to report such incident directly to their
Supervisor/department head or, if that is not appropriate, to the Township
Supervisor.

Reporting:

Any Township employee who feels that he or she has been harassed or
discriminated against, or has witnessed or become aware of discrimination or
harassment in violation of these policies, should bring the matter to the immediate
attention of his or her supervisor/department head or Township Supervisor. The
Township will promptly investigate all allegations of discrimination and harassment,
and take action as appropriate based on the outcome of the investigation. An
investigation and its results will be treated as confidential to the extent feasible, and
the Township will take appropriate action based on the outcome of the investigation.

There will be no reprisal or retaliation against anyone who reports such an incident
as it is unlawful to retaliate against anyone for filing a complaint or for cooperating in
an investigation of a harassment complaint. However, no disciplinary action will be
taken without a thorough investigation of the facts which shall include gathering
statements from all parties and witnesses involved.

Responsibilities

Employees, contractors, and temporary workers are responsible for complying with
this policy by reporting all instances of alleged harassment and cooperating in any

16



investigation of the alleged harassment.

Supervisors and department heads are responsible for implementing this policy in
their departments, keeping the workplace free from any form of harassment,
ensuring that all associates, contractors and temporary workers understand this
policy, taking complaints about harassment seriously and notifying Human
Resources immediately about any complaints of sexual or other forms of
harassment.

Workplace Violence

It is Big Rapids Charter Township’s policy that any threats, threatening language or
any other acts of aggression or violence made toward or by any Township
employee will not be tolerated. Violations of this policy may lead to disciplinary
action, up to and including immediate termination of employment.

Employees have a duty to warn their supervisors/department head, of any
suspicious behavior, situations or incidents that they observe or that they are aware
of that involve other employees, former employees, customers, suppliers, visitors or
other parties. These situations include, for example, threats or acts of violence,
aggressive behavior, offensive acts, threatening or offensive comments or remarks,
or similar behavior. Employee reports made pursuant to this policy will be held in
confidence to the maximum possible extent. The Township will not permit any form
of retaliation against any employee for filing a report under this policy.

Big Rapids Charter Township will promptly and thoroughly investigate all reports of
threats of violence or incidents of actual violence and of suspicious individuals or
activities. The identity of the individual making a report will be protected as much as
possible. In order to maintain workplace safety and the integrity of its investigation,
the Township may suspend employees suspected of workplace violence or threats
of violence, either with or without pay, pending investigation.

Anyone found to be responsible for threats of or actual violence or other conduct
that is in violation of these guidelines will be subject to prompt disciplinary action up
to and including termination of employment.

Employee Conduct and Work Rules

Big Rapids Charter Township expects its employees to behave professionally and
with integrity to ensure that the work environment is safe, comfortable and
productive. Employees should be respectiul, courteous, and mindful of others’
feelings and needs in order to maintain a positive work environment.

While it is not possible to list all forms of unacceptable workplace behavior, the
following examples of misconduct are strictly prohibited and anyone who violates
these rules may be subject to immediate termination. These examples are not

17



intended to be an all-inclusive list, but are based on common sense and our
Township’s culture, honesty and ethics. Any questions about the conduct policy
should be directed to the Township Supervisor. Be reminded that all employees are
employed at-will, and Big Rapids Charter Township reserves the right to terminate
an employee for any reason at any time.

e Theft, removal or defacement of Township or a co-worker's property, and/or
disclosure of confidential information.

o Falsification or modification of Township or personal records. This includes
obtaining employment on the basis of false or misleading information.

e Working under the influence of alcohol, marijuana, or illegal drugs

e Possession, distribution, sale, transfer, or use of alcohol, marijuana, or illegal
drugs in the workplace, while on duty, or while operating employer-owned
vehicles or equipment (see Substance Abuse Policy)

e Fighting or threatening violence in the workplace

e Violations of safety or health rules

e Possession of dangerous or unauthorized materials, such as explosives or
firearms, in the workplace

e Absent from work for three (3) consecutive work days without notifying

appropriate management

Sleeping while on duty

Direct Insubordination

Creating or contributing to unsanitary condition

Smoking in prohibited areas

Sexual or other unlawful harassment

Excessive absenteeism (authorized or unauthorized)

Unauthorized absence from work station during the work day

Unauthorized use of telephones, mail system, computers, or other employer

owned equipment

Unauthorized disclosure of confidential information

Violation of personnel policies

Unsatisfactory performance or conduct

Repeated Verbal Warnings

Repeated Written Warnings

Failing to report on-the-job injuries immediately to your supetvisor, his/her

immediate supervisor or replacement.

Unruly or disruptive activity in the workplace, or disrupting the work of others

Negligence or improper conduct leading to property damage or personal

injury

Failing to follow instructions of your supervisor or manager

Profanity or abusive language to an employee, supervisor or manager.

Horseplay, pranks, practical jokes

Gambling on Township property

Comments, statements, or other actions which are disparaging or derogatory

of any person's sex, race, ethnic origin, age, or sexual orientation.

Other disrespectful conduct or threatening or intimidating management,



supervisors, or fellow workers.

¢ Failure to report any fraudulent behavior, activities, and unsafe acts.

Prohibition of Weapons

DEFINITIONS:

For the purpose of this policy, a weapon is defined as:

¢ Any device that shoots a bullet, pellet, flare or any other projectile, whether

loaded or unloaded, including those powered by CO2. This includes but is not
limited to rifles, shotguns, handguns or other firearm, BB/pellet gun, flare gun,
stun gun or dart gun and any ammunition for any such device. Any replica of
the foregoing is also prohibited.

Any explosive device including firecrackers and black powder.

Any device that is designed or traditionally used to inflict harm including but
not limited to any knife with a blade longer that three inches, hunting knife,
throwing knives, dagger, razor, or other cutting instrument the blade of which
is exposed. This shall not apply to tools of the fire trade which may
incidentally meet this description.

Employer Requirements:

Members and employees of Big Rapids Township are permitted to carry a
knife in their personal protective equipment and/or as part of the department
uniform for the sole use of performing their job duties.

Any employee, is prohibited from carrying, maintaining, or storing a firearm or
weapon on any property owned or leased by Big Rapids Township uniess
that employee holds firearms concealed carry licensure issued by the State of
Michigan with exempt status or is a law enforcement officer who is in uniform
and/or required to carry a weapon as a condition of their employment.

Firearms on Big Rapids Township property or at such an incident is limited to
those designed for and carried in a concealed manner. Such firearms shall
always remain concealed unless their deployment is a matter of life safety as
authorized by Michigan Statute.

An employee’s personal vehicle is recognized as an extension of their
personal home. Upon arrival at a Fire Incident as an employee of the Big
Rapids Township Fire Department or upon arrival at any property owned by
Big Rapids Township as an employee of Big Rapids Township, the employee
will secure any and all firearms or described weapons in a locked case. For
the purpose of this policy a lockable portion of the employee’s personal
vehicle is recognized as a locked case when locked.

Exemptions:

19



These restrictions shall not apply to any law enforcement officer who is in uniform
and/or required to carry a weapon as a condition of their employment.

Sanctions:

Any employee who possesses a weapon or firearm on any property owned or
leased by Big Rapids Township in violation of this policy shall face disciplinary
action up to and including termination of employment.

This statement of prohibited conduct does not alter or limit the employment at-will
relationship between the Township and an employee.

Use of Communication and Computer Systems

The Township retains the right to access all Township property including
computers, desks, file cabinets, storage facilities, equipment, vehicles, telephones,
software and files and folders, electronic or otherwise, at any time. Employees
should maintain an expectation of privacy when on Township grounds or while
using Township property. All documents, files, voice-mails and electronic
information, including e-mails and other communications, created, received or
maintained on or through Township property are the property of the Township, not
the employee.

Computer Systems are to be used strictly for Township business, and are not
permitted off grounds unless authorized. Township property must be used in the
manner for which it was intended. Upon termination, employees are required to
surrender any Township property they possess. Employees are not permitted to
download any “pirated” software, files or programs and must receive permission
from a supervisor before installing any new software on a Township computer. Files
or programs stored on Township computers may not be copied for personal use.
You agree and understand that as an Employee of this Township, you are
responsible for obeying all local, state, federal, and international laws regarding the
use of our computers. Any attempt to break those laws through the use of the
Township's computers or networks may result in charges and fines being levied
against you. In such an event, you agree and understand that the Township will fully
cooperate with authorities to provide any information necessary. The Township’s e-
mail and Internet access systems (which are provided for your use) are for business
use only. As such, you agree and understand that the Township may monitor email
and Internet access systems at will, including the full content of any messages
therein, without further disclosure to you. The following rules regarding Computer
Systems Policy are in no way an exhaustive list. If you have any questions about
Computer Systems Policy, please contact the Township Supervisor.

1. Do not share your user login credentials or passwords with anyone, with the
exception of authorized IT personnel.
2. Do not delete, examine, copy or modify files and/or data belonging to other

users without their consent.
20



3. Do not use Township computers for other commercial purposes or for
personal profit.

4. Do not send harassing, obscene, sexually explicit, and/or other threatening
email. Use of Township computers for immoral, illegal or unethical purposes is
prohibited and may result in immediate termination.

5.  Files imported or transferred in must be checked for viruses prior to being
opened. All computers must have current virus detection software installed by the IT
Dept.

6.  Any unauthorized, deliberate action, which damages or disrupts a computing
system, alters its normal performance, or causes it to malfunction, is prohibited.

7. Downloading and/or installing any program which has not been approved by
the IT department or included with the computer when it was placed into service is
prohibited.

8.  Atftempts at sending unsolicited junk mail, “for-profit” messages or chain
letters are prohibited.

9. Dissemination of proprietary or confidential Township information via
electronic means without appropriate authorization is prohibited.

10. Use of Township computers for entertainment purposes such as listening to
Internet radio, playing Internet games, online gambling, accessing pornographic
sites, or participating in Internet chat rooms is prohibited.

Punctuality and Attendance

Scheduled hours may vary depending on work location and job responsibilities.
Supervisors/department heads will provide employees with their work schedule.
Should an employee have any questions regarding his/her work schedule, the
employee should contact the supervisor/department head. The Township does not
tolerate absenteeism without excuse. Employees who will be late to or absent from
work should notify a supervisor/department head in advance, or as soon as
practicable in the event of an emergency. Employees who need to leave early, for
iliness or otherwise, should inform a supervisor/department head before departure.
Unauthorized departures may result in disciplinary action.

Employees are expected to arrive on time and ready for work. An employee who
arrives after their scheduled arrival time is considered tardy. The Township
recognizes that situations arise which hinder punctuality; regardless, excessive
tardiness is prohibited, and may be subject to disciplinary action.

Failure to report to work and not calling to report the absence is a no call/no show
and is a serious matter. Any unreported absences are considered job abandonment
and will be considered a voluntary resignation of your employment.

We do recognize that there are times when absences and tardiness cannot be
avoided. In such cases, you are expected to notify your Supervisor/department
head as early as possible, but no later than the start of your work day. Please call,

stating the nature of your iliness and its expected duration, every day that you are
absent.

21



The Township reserves the right to require reasonable proof of illness or temporary
disability. Excessive absences or tardiness will result in disciplinary action up to and
including termination.

Personal and Township Owned Communication Devices

The purpose of this policy is to define standards, procedures, and restrictions for
end users who have legitimate business uses for connecting a personally-owned
mobile device to the Township's corporate network. This mobile device policy
applies, but is not limited, to all devices and Township media that fit the following
classifications:

* Smart phones

 Other mobile/cellular phones

* Tablet computers

* Portable media devices

* PDAs

* Portable gaming devices

* Laptop/notebook computers

 Any mobile device capable of storing corporate data and connecting to a network

The policy applies to any hardware and related software that is not corporately
owned or supplied, but could be used to access corporate resources. That is,
devices that employees have purchased for persocnal use but also wish to use in the
business environment. The overriding goal of this policy is to protect the integrity of
the confidential client and business data that resides within The Township’s
technology infrastructure. This policy intends to prevent this data from being
deliberately or inadvertently stored insecurely on a mobile device or carried over an
insecure network where it could potentially be accessed by unsanctioned
resources. A breach of this type could result in loss of information, damage to
critical applications, loss of revenue, and damage to the Township’s public image.
Therefore, all users employing a mobile device connected to The Township’s
corporate network, and/or capable of backing up, storing, or otherwise accessing
corporate data of any type, must adhere to Township-defined processes for doing
so. For approval and further information, contact your supervisor.

Township-Provided Portable Communication Devices (PCDs), including cell
phones, tablets and computers, should be used primarily for business purposes.
Employees have no reasonable expectation of privacy in regard to the use of such
devices, and all use is subject to monitoring, to the maximum extent permitted by
applicable law. This includes as permitted the right to monitor personal
communications as necessary. Some employees may be authorized to use their
own PCD for business purposes. These employees should work with the IT
department to configure their PCD for business use. Communications sent via a
personal PCD also may subject to monitoring if sent through the Township's
networks and the PCD must be provided for inspection and review upon request.
When sending a text message or using a PCD for business purposes, whether it is
22



a Township-provided or personal device, employees must comply with applicable
Township guidelines, including policies on sexual harassment, discrimination,
conduct, confidentiality, equipment use and operation of vehicles.

Inspections

Big Rapids Charter Township wishes to maintain a work environment that is free of
illegal drugs, alcohol, firearms, explosives, or other improper materials. To this end,
Big Rapids Charter Township prohibits the control, possession, transfer, sale, or
use of such materials on its premises and may require employees while on
Township or client property, to agree to the inspection of their persons, personal
possessions and property, personal vehicles parked on Township or client property,
and work areas including lockers, vehicles, desks, cabinets, work stations,
packages, handbags, briefcases and other personal possessions or places of
conceaiment, as well as personal email sent to the Township or its clients. The
cooperation of all employees is required to successfully administer this policy.
Desks, lockers, and other storage devices may be provided for the conveniences of
employees but remain the sole property of the employer. Accordingly, any
authorized agent or representative of the employer can inspect them, as well as any
articles found within them, at any time, either with or without prior notice.
Employees are expected to cooperate in the conduct of any search or inspection.

Smoking

The Township is in compliance with the Clean Air Act and has made all our office
buildings designated non-smoking areas. Smoking will not be allowed within any
office buildings. To those who smoke, we respectiully request your understanding
and cooperation and ask that if you need to smoke please do so outside the
buildings. This includes “Vaping” or using e-cigarettes. Smoking is prohibited in all
Township vehicles.

Confidential Township Information

Big Rapids Charter Township maintains a personnel file on each employee. These
files are kept confidential. Employees are expected to inform the Township of any
change in name, address, home phone number, home address, marital status,
number of dependents or emergency contact information.

No Solicitation / No Distribution

The Township is enthused to maintain a pleasant and cooperative relationship with
employees in all matters. However, no business relationship can operate efficiently
if there are frequent work interruptions. As such, employees may not solicit for any
cause, or distribute literature of any kind (for themselves or another employee) for
any purpose during working time.

Non-employees are not permitted to solicit employees or distribute materials for any
purpose on Township property at any time.

23



Conflict of Interest and Business Ethics

The Township has an established Ethics Policy, which addresses, among other
items, conflict of interest. Please refer to the Policy.

Equipment and Property Including Intellectual Property

Employees are prohibited from any unauthorized use of the Township's intellectual
property, such as audio and video tapes, print materials and software.

Equipment essential in accomplishing job duties is often expensive and difficult to
replace. Improper or unsafe use of equipment can result in discipline, up to and
including discharge. Employees are expected to follow safety standards and
guidelines and to follow ali operating instructions. Employees must notify a
Supervisor if equipment, machines or Township property appears to be damaged or
in need of repair.

Further, the Township is not responsible for any damage to employees' personal
belongings unless the employee's Supervisor provided advance approval for the
employee to bring the personal property to work.

Health and Safety

The Township takes every reasonable precaution to ensure that employees have a
safe working environment. Safety measures and rules are in place for the protection
of all employees and it is ultimately the responsibility of each employee to help
prevent accidents. To ensure the continuation of a safe workplace, all employees
should review and understand all provisions of the Township’s workplace safety
policy. Employees should use all safety and protective equipment provided to them,
and maintain work areas in a safe and orderly manner, free from hazardous
conditions. Employees who observe an unsafe practice or condition should report it
to a supervisor immediately.

In the event of an accident, employees must notify a supervisor immediately. Report
every injury, regardless of how minor, to a supervisor immediately. Physical
discomfort caused by repetitive tasks must also be reported.

Employees should recognize any potential fire hazards and be aware of fire escape
routes and fire drills. In the event of an emergency, dial 911 immediately. If you
hear a fire alarm or other emergency alert system, proceed quickly and calmly to
the nearest exit.

Hiring Relatives

It is well accepted that employment of relatives and personal friends in the same
area of an organization can cause serious conflicts and problems. In these
circumstances, all parties, including supervisors, leave themselves open to charges
of inequitable consideration in decisions.

24



Big Rapids Charter Township's policy is that relatives or friends or individuals who
live with but are not legally related to persons currently employed by the Township
may be hired ONLY if they will not be working directly for or supervising a relative or
personal friend or will not be working directly above the relative's immediate
superior or directly for the relative's immediate subordinate. If already employed,
they cannot be transferred into such a reporting relationship. If the relative
relationship is established after employment, the individuals concerned will decide
who is to be transferred if there is a position opening that the individual is qualified
to satisly. If that decision is not made within 30 days, management will decide. This
policy takes effect as of the date this manual was originally distributed. Anyone
currently working in a position contrary to this policy will be grandfathered in.

Employee Relationships

A famiiial relationship among employees can create an actual or at least a potential
conflict of interest in the employment setting, especially where one relative
supervises another relative. To avoid this problem, Big Rapids Charter Township
may refuse to hire or place a relative in a position where the potential for favoritism
or conflict exists. In other cases, the parties may be separated by reassignment or
terminated from employment, at the discretion of the Township. Accordingly, all
parties to any type of intimate personal relationship must inform management.

Business Expense Reimbursement

Employees may be reimbursed for reasonable approved expenses incurred in the
course of business. These expenses must be approved by your
Supervisor/department head, and may include air travel, hotels, motels, meals, cab
fare, rental vehicles, or gas and car mileage for personal vehicles. Contact your
Supervisor/department head in advance if you have any questions about whether
an expense will be reimbursed. If personal cell phones are used an employee may
be reimbursed. The township may disclose of any telephone numbers if the
employee receives reimbursement. The township will not publicly advertise an
employee’s personal telephone number in large media sources, i.e. newspaper,
radio, community newsletter. The employee must be made aware of when his/her
phone number is being disclosed.

References

Big Rapids Charter Township will respond to reference requests through the
Township Clerk.

Social Media Policy

Use of Social Media Information published on any social networking site should
not reveal any information designated by the Township as confidential and must not
disclose any trade secret, such as client information or marketing efforts. This also
applies to comments posted on other blogs, forums, and social networking sites.
The Township respects the right of any employee to maintain a blog, web page or

to participate in a social networking site. However, to protect Township interests
25



and ensure employees focus on their job duties, employees must adhere to the
following rules: Employees may not post on a blog or web page or participate on a
social networking, Twitter or similar site during working time or at any time with
Township equipment or property. All rules regarding confidential and proprietary
business information apply in full to blogs, web pages, social networking, Twitter
and similar sites. Any information that cannot be disclosed through a conversation,
a note or an e-mail also cannot be disclosed in a blog, web page, social networking,
Twitter or similar site. Any conduct that is impermissible under the law if expressed
in any other form or forum is impermissible if expressed through a blog, web page,
sacial networking, Twitter or similar site. You should not post content about the
Township, co-workers or customers that is discriminatory, defamatory, libelous or
threatening or a violation of the Township’s policies against discrimination on
account of race, age, religion, sex, ethnicity, nationality disability or other protected
class, status or characteristic. The Township encourages all employees to keep in
mind the speed and manner in which information posted on a blog, web page,
and/or social networking site is received and often misunderstood by readers.
Employees must use their best judgment. Employees with any questions should
review the guidelines above and/or consult with their manager. Published
information should not reveal confidential information, nor may it disclose any trade
secret. Township logos and trademarks may not be used without written consent of
an officer of the Township.

26



Section 6 - Acknowledgements

General Handbook Acknowledgment

This Employee Handbook is intended to provide guidelines and general
descriptions only. Individual circumstances may call for individual attention.
Because the Township's operations may change, the contents of this Handbook
may be changed at any time, with or without notice, in an individual case or
generally, at the sole discretion of management. Please read the following

statements and sign below to indicate your receipt and acknowledgment of this
Employee Handbook.

| have received and read a copy of Big Rapids Charter Township’s Employee
Handbook. | understand that the policies, rules and benefits described in it are
subject to change at the sole discretion of the Township at any time. | further
understand that my employment is terminable at will, either by myself or the
Township, with or without cause or notice, regardless of the length of my
employment or the granting of benefits of any kind. | understand that no contract of
employment other than “at will” has been expressed or implied, and that no
circumstances arising out of my employment will alter my “at will” status. |
understand that my signature below indicates that | have read and understand the

above statements and that | have received a copy of the Township's Employee
Handbook.

Employee's Printed Name:

Position:

Employee Signature: Date:

The signed original copy of this acknowledgment should be given to management -
it will be filed in your personnel file.

27



28




